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          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Ladies and

          3  gentlemen, please forgive me for the delay for our

          4  11:00 meeting. I wasn't prepared to pursue the

          5  important issue of the day until this time.

          6                 We have a number of different items

          7  on the agenda. I'll go through all of them and then

          8  we'll let you know how we're going to handle them. I

          9  was going to say we'll discuss that, but that would

         10  be a mistake.

         11                 Intro. No. 317-A, Citywide 20055217

         12  LLY, proposed local law to amend the Administrative

         13  Code of the City of New York in relation to

         14  requiring review by the Landmarks Preservation

         15  Commission before a demolition permit may be issued.

         16                 LU No. 509. Staten Island CB 3.

         17  20055525 HKR. Who comes up with these numbers?

         18                 Okay, I just think this is like the

         19  revenge of my 11th grade math teacher, see if I can

         20  get this.

         21                 N050434 HKR. Designation list No. 361

         22  LP-1280, by the Landmarks Preservation Commission

         23  pursuant to Section 3020 of New York City Charter

         24  concerning the designation of James L. And Lucinda

         25  Bedell, located at 7484 Amboy Road, Block 7900, Lot
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          2  5.

          3                 Preconsidered Manhattan CB-1. 200 --

          4  I think that from now on each member of the

          5  Committee should read some of the numbers.

          6                 20055292 HKM, N050445 HKM,

          7  designation List No. 362, LP-2178 by the Landmarks

          8  Preservation Commission pursuant to Section 3020 of

          9  the New York City Charter, concerning the

         10  designation of the Keuffel and Esser Company

         11  Building located at 127 Fulton Street, also known as

         12  42 Ann Street, Block 91, Lot 12.

         13                 LU No. 511, Bronx Community Board 11.

         14  20055646 HHX. Application submitted by the New York

         15  Health and Hospitals Corporation pursuant to Section

         16  7385(6) of its Enabling Act requesting the approval

         17  of the leasing of a parcel of land and a building

         18  located on the Jacobi Medical Center campus.

         19                 Preconsidered Queens Community Board

         20  4. 20055658 HHQ, application submitted by the New

         21  York Health and Hospitals Corporation pursuant to

         22  Section 7385(6) of its Enabling Act requesting the

         23  approval of the leasing of 6400 square feet of space

         24  in a medical office building under construction

         25  located on the Elmhurst Hospital Center campus.
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          2                 Preconsidered Brooklyn Community

          3  Board- 18, 20065017 SCK. Application submitted by

          4  the New York City Charter -- School Construction

          5  Authority, pursuant to Section 1732 of the New York

          6  State Public Authorities Law, for a school, 500 seat

          7  primary/intermediate school, to be located on the

          8  East side of E. 107th Street between Flatlands and

          9  Avenue J, borough of Brooklyn.

         10                 And I think due to certain questions

         11  that I cannot answer at this point, but hopefully

         12  we'll be able to answer a little later, we're going

         13  to leave the landmarks item for last. It's no

         14  reflection on our relationship with the Landmarks

         15  Commission, either positive or negative. Okay? I'm

         16  sorry.

         17                 So, we're going to deal with the

         18  other items. First we'll get the Health and

         19  Hospitals Corporation out of the way, since she was

         20  kind enough to give us her home number and her

         21  neighbor's home number.

         22                 I have Laray Brown and after that is

         23  David Golub, right? Is David Golub here?

         24                 Is there anyone else that's going to

         25  be testifying on this item? And do you have --
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          2  besides David? Okay, great.

          3                 Do you have prepared testimony?

          4                 MS. BROWN: No.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: How long will you

          6  be speaking?

          7                 MS. BROWN: A minute.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: A minute? You can

          9  speak two minutes.

         10                 How long will you be speaking?

         11                 MR. GOLUB: A minute or two.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: A minute or two,

         13  fine. Thank you.

         14                 Okay, we're going to time you, even

         15  though we normally don't time the people who come

         16  from the City government. Just to make sure you're

         17  telling the truth about your phone number as well.

         18                 Now, go ahead. State your name for

         19  the record, and let's go.

         20                 MS. BROWN: My name is Laray Brown,

         21  and I'm Senior Vice President for Corporate Planning

         22  and Intergovernmental Relations, at New York City

         23  Health and Hospitals Corporation.

         24                 Chairperson, should we talk about

         25  Elmhurst first, since Mr. Golub is here, and then

                                                            7

          1  LANDMARKS, PUBLIC SITING AND MARITIME USES

          2  we'll talk about Jacobi?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: It's up to you.

          4                 MS. BROWN: Okay.

          5                 The Elmhurst Hospital Project is a

          6  collabor -- should I keep going? Okay. -- Is a

          7  collaboration between, I should say among, the New

          8  York City Health and Hospitals Corporation, and it's

          9  Elmhurst Hospital Center Queens Health Network and

         10  American Cancer Society.

         11                 As you know, this collaboration in

         12  the case of this project has resulted in the

         13  co-location of the American Cancer Society in a new

         14  medical office building that is being built by our

         15  Queens Health Network, Elmhurst, for the provision

         16  of a cancer care center.

         17                 The American Cancer Society will use

         18  6,400 square feet of a 23,000 square foot facility

         19  using two floors, and we intend to get a lease

         20  payment for the use of those, of that space, but

         21  most importantly, this will enhance the public

         22  hospital's opportunity to provide extensive cancer

         23  screening, cancer education and cancer treatment

         24  services in the highly diverse community of Western

         25  Queens.
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          2                 We're looking forward to this

          3  co-location. We currently enjoy an extremely

          4  productive relationship with the American Cancer

          5  Society and we think the co-location in this new

          6  medical office building will strengthen that

          7  relationship, but moreover, assure one-stop shopping

          8  for the thousands of patients who come to Elmhurst

          9  for early screening and detection of cancer and for

         10  the requisite procedures and follow-up that will be

         11  required.

         12                 We expect to occupy this new building

         13  in September of 2006, and with you're approval we'll

         14  move forward with a lease arrangement with our

         15  partners, the American Cancer Society.

         16                 MR. GOLUB: Good morning, Chair. My

         17  name is David Golub. I'm the Regional Vice President

         18  of the American Cancer Society in Queens.

         19                 I'd like to keep my testimony very

         20  brief.

         21                 Let me say that I did submit written

         22  remarks to the Committee.

         23                 We believe, very simply, that the

         24  collaboration will allow the American Cancer Society

         25  to substantially improve our ability, collective
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          2  ability, to reach those residents in Queens who most

          3  need our assistance, namely the poor, the medically

          4  underserved, the immigrants and others who face

          5  multiple barriers to care. We are particularly

          6  pleased that Elmhurst Hospital will co-locate

          7  significant screening resources at the new facility,

          8  ensuring this project really becomes what we

          9  envision as a high-performing public/private

         10  partnership designed to address cancer health

         11  disparities.

         12                 The City Council has been very

         13  supportive of the American Cancer Society's mission

         14  of fighting cancer. The Council continues to support

         15  that mission. Your approval of this lease will

         16  amplify that support and we duly request that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         18                 I just want to introduce my

         19  colleagues who are here. From my left, Councilman

         20  Oliver Koppell, Councilman Charles Barron, Council

         21  Member Annabel Palma, Councilman Bill Perkins and

         22  Councilman James Oddo all the way at my right.

         23                 Do any of my colleagues have any

         24  questions?

         25                 Seeing none, all right, I think that
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          2  Councilman Koppell has to leave.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: And wanted to

          5  vote.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chairman. I have a meeting that was

          8  unfortunately scheduled, not by me, at the same time

          9  as this meeting, so I have to go downstairs.

         10                 But with your permission, the

         11  permission of the members, I'd like to vote aye on

         12  all items on the calendar. Okay? Aye.

         13                 And if you need me to sign, I can

         14  sign now.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Can you finish

         16  the testimony on the other hospital as well?

         17                 MS. LARAY: Sure.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Mr. Golub, you're

         19  not involved in the other hospital, right? So, I

         20  just wanted to mention something that probably

         21  doesn't need mentioning, that of course the

         22  responsibility that the City has in protecting the

         23  health of its citizenry is critical, but everyone

         24  knows the great work that the American Cancer

         25  Society has been doing over many, many years and
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          2  that cuts across every group, every race, every

          3  religion, so I just wanted to say that it's an honor

          4  for us to do whatever we can without having to give

          5  you money to help the work you do which is so

          6  critical to people both in this City and throughout

          7  the world. We thank you very much for all of you

          8  work.

          9                 MR. GOLUB: Thank you, Chair.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Next item.

         11                 MS. BROWN: Thank you, Chairperson.

         12                 The next item is a continuation of a

         13  partnership that the New York City Health and

         14  Hospitals Corporation through its Jacobi Medical

         15  Center enjoys with the Albert Einstein College of

         16  Medicine of Yeshiva University.

         17                 About two years ago, in June of 2003,

         18  we came in front of this Committee -- oh, I'm sorry

         19  in March, yes, about two years ago, came in front of

         20  this Committee concerning a lease, a long-term lease

         21  arrangement with the Yeshiva University and Jacobi

         22  concerning a ten-acre parcel for a property for the

         23  purposes of research. And this Committee graciously

         24  approved that long-term lease. What we're bringing

         25  today is, as I said, the second phase of that
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          2  partnership, for the lease of eight acres on the

          3  Jacobi campus for the provision of additional

          4  faculty and student resources for the medical

          5  school.

          6                 This eight acres will specifically

          7  include the provision of housing and other related

          8  services for the faculty and students, and there is

          9  some consideration of community housing.

         10                 As with the first agreement, Jacobi

         11  Medical Center will enjoy a lease payment that we

         12  believe is of significant value over the long term

         13  and will support the ongoing -- I have a fly here

         14  that's attacking me, sorry -- will support the

         15  ongoing revenue needs of Jacobi Medical Center.

         16                 I also want to underscore that there

         17  has been a long tradition of partnership between --

         18  this partnership goes back a very long way, the

         19  medical school and the hospital have enjoyed a very

         20  positive collaboration, and we believe that the

         21  continued opportunity for colocation of the school

         22  services, of the faculty and the students on the

         23  medical center's campus will continue to inure

         24  positive outcomes for Jacobi and its staff.

         25                 And if you have any questions, I'll
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          2  be happy to answer them.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do any of my

          4  colleagues have any questions on this matter?

          5                 Thank you very much.

          6                 MS. BROWN: You're welcome.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Is there anyone

          8  else here to speak on this item?

          9                 Is there anyone else here to speak on

         10  this item? Okay, thank you very much.

         11                 The next, we're going to have Tami

         12  Rachelson. Please don't come up til the chair calls

         13  you. Okay, I called you, Mr. Shaw, and Kenrick Ou.

         14  Did I get it right this time? Okay, thank you.

         15                 Greg Shaw is the one that got up

         16  before. Right. Is there anyone else? What about

         17  Gloria Buckery. Are you with them on the same item?

         18  Can somebody bring another chair? We need another

         19  chair, please.

         20                 Is there anyone else here that should

         21  be on your panel? Mr. Shaw?

         22                 MR. SHAW: No.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay.

         24                 We're ready when you are.

         25                 MR. SHAW: Thank you, Chairperson.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Whoever will

          3  speak should please identify themselves for the

          4  record.

          5                 MR. SHAW: My name is Gregory Shaw.

          6  I'm the principle attorney for Contracts,

          7  Construction and Real Estate for the New York City

          8  School Construction Authority.

          9                 To my immediately left is Gloria

         10  Buckery, who is a regional superintendent for the

         11  site which we are proposing today. Kenrick Ou, who

         12  is the Manager of Operations for Real Estate is

         13  immediately to her left, as well as Tami Rachelson,

         14  who is Deputy Director for Division of School

         15  Facilities for Real Estate for the Department of

         16  Education.

         17                 We're very happy and pleased today to

         18  submit this site plan to you.

         19                 On July 18th, 2005, the New York City

         20  School Construction Authority submitted its

         21  application to the Mayor, as well as to the City

         22  Council. As you may recall, we withdrew our initial

         23  application on this site plan back on June 8th

         24  earlier this year.

         25                 We are proposing today to submit a
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          2  500-seat primary intermediate school facility

          3  located in Brooklyn, Block 8215, Lots 12 and 21 on

          4  the East Side at East 107th Street between Flatlands

          5  Avenue and Avenue J.

          6                 DOE, it would be located in DOE

          7  Region No. 6, Brooklyn's Community Board No. 18.

          8                 The proposed site is approximately

          9  19,000 square feet, of rectangle assemblage of two

         10  privately-owned warehouse buildings on the East

         11  107th Street between Flatlands Avenue -- excuse me,

         12  of Yeshiva, I'm sorry, and a privately-vacant lot on

         13  the East 107th Street between Flatlands Avenue and

         14  Avenue J in the Canarsie Section of Brooklyn.

         15                 One lot contains a vacant two-story

         16  building, most recently occupied by Yeshiva and the

         17  other is a paved vacant lot.

         18                 Under the proposed project, the SCA

         19  would require the properties demolish the existing

         20  on-site building and construct a new approximately

         21  500-seat primary intermediate school facility.

         22                 The notice of filing of the site plan

         23  was published in the New York Post in the City

         24  Record on December 13th, 2004. Brooklyn Community

         25  Board No. 18 was notified on December 13th, 2004,
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          2  and was asked to hold a public hearing on the

          3  proposed site plan.

          4                 Community Board No. 18 conducted a

          5  public hearing on the site plan on December 22nd,

          6  2004, and adopted a resolution recommending against

          7  the proposed site.

          8                 The City Planning Commission was also

          9  notified and it subsequently recommended in favor of

         10  the proposed site.

         11                 The Authority has considered all

         12  comments that were submitted on the proposed

         13  project, and pursuant to Section 1731 of the Public

         14  Authority's Law, and Section 1732 of Public

         15  Authority's Law, the Authority now submits a site

         16  plan for your consideration and hopefully favorable

         17  action.

         18                 Thank you very much.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         20                 I would like to ask Councilman Barron

         21  in whose district this actually is going to take

         22  place to please make some comments.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you very

         24  much, Mr. Chair.

         25                 And I want to say that I want to
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          2  thank the School Construction Authority for giving

          3  me the opportunity to really research all of the

          4  issues involved in that site, and we did have an

          5  opportunity to look at the other proposed site that

          6  some members in the community want, particularly the

          7  tenant association president of Brookline Houses.

          8                 And after reviewing both sites

          9  myself, I went to both sites, the 105th Street site

         10  where some members of the community wanted it built,

         11  was a site that HPD owns, and they're committed to

         12  housing on that site. And also the School

         13  Construction Authority is not permitted to building

         14  a school at that site which has a train station and

         15  methadone clinic and some other things at the site.

         16                 The Planning Board, when I spoke to

         17  people in the Planning Board, their reasons to me

         18  didn't fit a proper justification of not wanting a

         19  state-of-the-art new school in the district that can

         20  surely use it when you have some children going to

         21  schools in the portable units, why wouldn't you want

         22  a new school? I couldn't fathom the reason of that.

         23  And when I heard some of the reasons like we don't

         24  need it, the School Construction Authority can't

         25  tell us what should be built at the site that why
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          2  did the owner sell this without telling us, to me

          3  those are not justifiable reasons not to have a new

          4  state-of-the-art school in a district that sorely

          5  needs it.

          6                 So, I just want to say to my

          7  colleague, I would appreciate your 100 percent

          8  support of this project. I'm certainly voting in

          9  favor of it, and I think it's long overdue, sorely

         10  needed and appreciated in our community.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         12                 Do my colleagues have any questions?

         13                 Seeing none, thank you very much for

         14  your testimony.

         15                 MR. SHAW: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I'm going to ask

         17  David Pollock, and Michael T. Sillerman to come up

         18  to testify on 317-A.

         19                 Now, just for the record, 317-A is

         20  being laid over, but we are taking the testimony

         21  today.

         22                 And I have been informed by Counsel

         23  that once you testify today, that's it. You can send

         24  somebody else to testify.

         25                 Is that true or not?
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          2                 Well, I'm not sure about that. But in

          3  any case, your being here today is appreciated and

          4  we're ready for your testimony.

          5                 You will have two minutes a piece.

          6  Hold on a moment. Hold on a moment.

          7                 MR. POLLOCK: Okay, my name is David

          8  Pollock. I'm the Associate Executive Director and

          9  Director of Government Relations for the JCRC. On

         10  behalf of the JCRC, I wish to state our opposition

         11  to the proposed bill.

         12                 As common among non-profits,

         13  Synagogues and other Jewish institutions rarely sell

         14  or demolish their property.

         15                 In fact, when they do so, it's often

         16  assigned to a congregation school or other

         17  organization has outgrown its facility and must

         18  build or relocate.

         19                 Alternatively, the demographics of

         20  the neighborhood have substantially changed and

         21  there is no longer a Jewish community to serve or to

         22  support the facility.

         23                 One of the saddest components of my

         24  job is to advise the leadership of such

         25  organizations while they are forced to contemplate
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          2  closing their institution.

          3                 I can testify that no one takes these

          4  decisions lightly. Such institutions are often the

          5  center of activity for the Jewish community. The

          6  officers are forced to face the reality of a

          7  dwindling congregation and nonexistent finances.

          8  Indeed, it is a painful process to let go of the

          9  site where you celebrated your children's weddings,

         10  bar mitzvahs, bat mitzvahs and other simchahs, not

         11  Mr. Chairman, but joyous occasions.

         12                 Intro 317-A is a serious impediment

         13  to institutions wishing to grow and those facing

         14  closure. Under this bill, even if a building was

         15  never considered to be worthy of landmark

         16  designation during the 40 years of Landmarks

         17  Preservation Commission, the owners are thrust into

         18  a bureaucratic twilight zone.

         19                 The owner will not be able to obtain

         20  a demolition permit without extensive reviews.

         21  Furthermore, the legislation creates a new category,

         22  preferably preserved, which ushers the owner into

         23  the foyer of the twilight zones for up to a year. At

         24  that point, the Chair of the Commission can calendar

         25  the property for a full hearing, and the property is
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          2  then fully ensconced in the twilight zone until the

          3  Commission votes on its status.

          4                 I've heard of cases where buildings

          5  were the subjects of hearings years and years ago

          6  and have never been voted on.

          7                 Our key concern is that this bill

          8  would tie the hands of non-profit owners. Under

          9  federal and state law, the officers and directors of

         10  each non-profit must develop a stated mission. The

         11  decision to sell or demolish this most significant

         12  asset of a non-profit must be consistent with that

         13  mission. If this bill were to be passed, it creates

         14  a government-imposed mission, preservation, that

         15  automatically supersedes any mission developed by

         16  the nonprofit through its appropriate governance

         17  structure.

         18                 As it is, Jewish communal properties

         19  are prominent targets of vandalism. When a

         20  congregation ceases regular services it is, all too

         21  often, considered abandoned and therefore fair game.

         22  By placing these structures into a new twilight

         23  zone, there is an increased likelihood that such

         24  buildings would be vandalized.

         25                 Moreover, the rabbinical restrictions
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          2  that accompany the sale of a synagogue make sales

          3  more difficult. This legislation would make timely

          4  sales even more complicated.

          5                 New York State law requires

          6  dissolving congregations to distribute the proceeds

          7  of such sales to worthy charities. It is almost a

          8  certainty that this law would reduce charitable

          9  contributions.

         10                 We should --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Are you almost

         12  done?

         13                 MR. POLLOCK: Yes.

         14                 There's one paragraph that was added.

         15  We should be cognizant of the communities in New

         16  York City that are experiencing tremendous

         17  construction booms. Often the physical houses of

         18  worship cannot adequately provide for the demands

         19  for services and programs.

         20                 Expansions of houses of worship would

         21  be impeded. The legislation would also stifle the

         22  opportunity for private houses in these

         23  neighborhoods to be renewed.

         24                 For the reasons stated above, we urge

         25  you to oppose 317-A.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

          3                 Identify yourself.

          4                 MR. SILLERMAN: Yes, good morning. My

          5  name is Michael T. Sillerman. I'm the Co-chair of

          6  the Land Use Department of the Kramer Levin firm,

          7  and I'm the Chair of the Landmarks Committee of the

          8  Real Estate Board of New York.

          9                 I appear on behalf of the Archdiocese

         10  of New York in opposition to the enactment of this

         11  proposed bill, which would require review by the

         12  Landmarks Preservation Commission before a

         13  demolition permit may be issued for any building

         14  more than 50 years old.

         15                 Enactment of this bill would be

         16  extremely ill-advised for numerous reasons, ranging

         17  from its detrimental effect on non-profit

         18  institutions, to interference with the orderly and

         19  predictable process of development in this City, to

         20  significant legal and constitutional infirmities.

         21                 The Archdiocese is a Roman Catholic

         22  organization that owns and operates approximately

         23  200 parishes in Manhattan, Staten Island and the

         24  Bronx, as well as numerous educational and

         25  charitable facilities.
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          2                 The Archdiocese is a strong advocate

          3  of preserving historic buildings and is the owner of

          4  more landmarked churches than any other denomination

          5  in the City.

          6                 The Archdiocese is a significant

          7  owner of real estate in the City, its properties,

          8  many of which are older buildings, would be

          9  seriously affected by the bill.

         10                 It's no exaggeration to say that this

         11  bill would stifle the ability of all non-profit

         12  institutions to plan for their future.

         13                 No prudent purchaser would purchase

         14  any property until the lengthy predemolition

         15  determination in the bill has been made. The bill

         16  effectively places the onus on the institution or

         17  other owners seeking to sell property.

         18                 This is a completely unworkable and

         19  undesirable prospect for the archdiocese, and all

         20  other non-profit institutions which must be able to

         21  evaluate their assets and have a predictable basis

         22  on which they can make them available for

         23  redevelopment in order to plan to meet the needs of

         24  the diverse community that they serve.

         25                 The bill would in effect end
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          2  as-of-right development for older obsolete

          3  buildings, which are precisely the class of

          4  buildings which should be replaced to build new

          5  housing, community facility and commercial buildings

          6  throughout the City.

          7                 Then I want to summarize the rest of

          8  my prepared testimony, which I've given you and will

          9  submit to you, a legal memorandum collaborating on

         10  these issues, but the issue is that we have 22,000

         11  buildings protected in this City under a very

         12  systematic landmarking procedure.

         13                 There are 3,000 demolition permits

         14  issued a year in the City. There were five- or

         15  six-hundred permits issued per month, there's no

         16  basis for knowing the age of a building, so every

         17  single one of these buildings is going to go to the

         18  Landmarks Commission under a procedure which is

         19  really duplicative of landmarks law. It prejudges,

         20  it's doing exactly the opposite of what you want

         21  which is to have a due process, careful

         22  consideration of landmarking. You're really going to

         23  shut down as-of-right development. This is a very

         24  bad piece of legislation for not only non-profits

         25  but all owners in the City, and I think it raises
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          2  significant issues under both federal statutes

          3  protecting religious institutions and under the

          4  Constitution in terms of imposing a broad moratorium

          5  and not a carefully tailored one.

          6                 So, we urge you to rethink this

          7  legislation and not adopt it. Thank you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do any of my

          9  colleagues have any questions?

         10                 Thank you for your testimony.

         11                 I just wanted to mention to my

         12  colleagues that we're laying this over, but I,

         13  myself, have serious reservations about the bill.

         14                 In general I'd like to give the

         15  non-for-profits and the charitable institutions not

         16  exemption from some law that would be hurtful to

         17  others, but certainly something that, you know, I

         18  don't want to denigrate the landmarks process, but

         19  somehow I have felt for very many, many years that

         20  the charities and non-for-profits should be allowed

         21  or not have to be restrictive by many of the

         22  restrictions that face normal property owners.

         23                 So, all I'm saying is, you know,

         24  we've heard the testimony, and I'm not so sure

         25  myself at this point whether I'm in favor of this
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          2  legislation, even though we've had a number of

          3  hearings. I, something deep down in me says that the

          4  non-for-profits and charities should be exempt. I'm

          5  not sure whether, you know, I'm not sure whether I'm

          6  right or wrong, just for the record.

          7                 Do any of my colleagues have any

          8  questions?

          9                 Council Member Perkins has an urgent

         10  matter in his district.

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Perkins.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         13  very much. I'd like to express my appreciation for

         14  the opportunity to vote aye at this point in time so

         15  that I can go back into the district for another

         16  matter.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 And finally, Diane Jackier. I want to

         21  apologize publicly. I thought 317-A was on the

         22  agenda for today and that we would be voting so

         23  that's why I saved it for last. I didn't realize

         24  that we were only taking testimony. So, that's why I

         25  left it together with the other landmarked items.
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          2                 We're ready.

          3                 MS. JACKIER: Good morning, Council

          4  members. My name is Diane Jackier, I'm Director of

          5  Community and Government Affairs at the Landmarks

          6  Preservation Commission.

          7                 I'm here to testify on the

          8  Commission's designation of the Keuffel and Esser

          9  Company Building in Manhattan as a New York City

         10  landmark.

         11                 On March 29th, 2005, the Landmarks

         12  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

         13  designation. Seven people spoke in favor, including

         14  representatives of the Lower Manhattan Emergency

         15  Preservation Fund, the Metropolitan Chapter of the

         16  Victorian Society in America, the Historic Districts

         17  Council, the New York Landmarks Conservancy and the

         18  Fine Arts Federation of New York.

         19                 The Commission also received letters

         20  in support of designation from Councilman Alan

         21  Gerson, Community Board 1 in Manhattan, the

         22  Municipal Arts Society and the Oughtred Society.

         23                 There were no speakers in opposition.

         24  On April 26th, 2005, the Commission voted to

         25  designate the building a New York City landmark.
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          2                 Constructed in 1892 to '93, to the

          3  design of DeLemos & Cordes, the eight-story building

          4  at 127 Fulton Street served as the general offices

          5  and salesrooms for the Keuffel & Esser Company, the

          6  first American company solely devoted to drawing and

          7  drafting materials.

          8                 The K&E Company's products, which

          9  included mathematical and surveying equipment, were

         10  used in countless construction and engineering

         11  projects in the United States, such as the Brooklyn

         12  Bridge.

         13                 The Company also performed a vital

         14  role during World War I by greatly increasing

         15  production of drafting equipment and developing and

         16  manufacturing optical and precision instruments for

         17  scientific and military purposes, which was

         18  particularly critical since the war ended the import

         19  of such material from Europe.

         20                 De Lemos & Cordes' richly detailed

         21  Renaissance Revival style design features a strong

         22  and eclectic tripartite division. The base has a

         23  two-story, arched cast-iron storefront, divided by

         24  slender colonettes, bearing the firm's name, small

         25  shields with the firm's initials and representations
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          2  of its products.

          3                 The Commission urges you to affirm

          4  the designation of the K & E building.

          5                 I'm also here to testify on another

          6  designation.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Councilman

          8  Gerson, would you like to make some comments on the

          9  landmark item in your district that we are voting on

         10  today?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER GERSON: Not at this

         12  time.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Okay, thank you.

         14  If you change your mind any time after 2:00, let me

         15  know.

         16                 MS. JACKIER: I'm also here, Council

         17  members, to speak on the designation of the Bedell

         18  House in Staten Island as a New York City landmark.

         19                 On April 12th, 2005, the Landmarks

         20  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

         21  designation.

         22                 Six people spoke in favor, including

         23  representatives of Councilman Andrew Lanza, and

         24  Congressman Vito Fosella, the Historic Districts

         25  Council, the Staten Island Preservation League and
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          2  the Tottenville Historical Society.

          3                 The Commission also received four

          4  letters and 24 e-mails in support of designation.

          5                 Three speakers, including the owner,

          6  testified in opposition. The owner also read two

          7  letters into the record opposing the designation.

          8                 The Commission designated the

          9  building on April 12th, 2005.

         10                 Constructed between 1869 and 1874,

         11  the James L. And Lucinda Bedell House is a fine

         12  example of a freestanding Second Empire Style frame

         13  residence. And until it was altered in March 2005,

         14  was the best preserved house in this style in Staten

         15  Island South Shore.

         16                 Second Empire Style Houses once

         17  proliferated on the South Shore with a popularity of

         18  the style coincided with a period of prosperity in

         19  growth tied to the opening of the Staten Island

         20  Railroad, but they are now becoming increasingly

         21  rare.

         22                 A three-bay wide three-story frame

         23  building, the Bedell House is the only

         24  architecturally distinguished Second Empire frame

         25  house in the South Shore that retains its historic
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          2  clapboard siding. The house's one-story front

          3  veranda features handsome turnposts and a molded

          4  cornice and the windows still retain their molded

          5  surrounds. The western facade retains its two-story

          6  polygonal bay enriched by recessed panels and molded

          7  cornices. The imposing flared mansard roof that

          8  extends over the main portion of the house has

          9  segmental arched windows that retain their molded

         10  hoods.

         11                 As some of you may know, the owner

         12  started to remove significant architectural features

         13  of the house when he learned of the Landmarks

         14  Commission's interest in his building. He also spray

         15  painted the house several different colors, which

         16  has since been repainted white.

         17                 Now that the building is a designated

         18  landmark, all future changes for the building would

         19  require a permit from the Commission.

         20                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         21  the designation of the Bedell House.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Councilman

         23  McMahon, are you interested in --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McMAHON: Yes, Mr.

         25  Chairman. I just want to lend my voice on behalf of
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          2  all Staten Islanders and urge the members of the

          3  Committee to support the Bedell House designation.

          4                 And, again, thank you, Ms. Jackier,

          5  and Commissioner Tierney and everyone at Landmarks

          6  for dealing on this.

          7                 I just also want the record to

          8  reflect that because of a scheduling conflict I

          9  missed the testimony regarding 317-A. I thank the

         10  Chairman for further consideration of that bill, and

         11  certainly am meeting with the representatives of the

         12  Archdiocese, and also from -- who else was here this

         13  morning? The Jewish Community Relations Council to

         14  try to address their concerns and see if we can put

         15  together a package. I think that will make everyone

         16  happy.

         17                 So, I'll just ask the Committee to

         18  stay tuned on that and we'll be back in a few weeks

         19  to present something to the Chair that hopefully

         20  would be a compromise and further the intentions of

         21  the legislation and make it one that's workable for

         22  all New Yorkers.

         23                 So, I thank you for your continued

         24  efforts in that regard.

         25                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Thank you,
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          2  Ms. Jackier. Thank you, Council members.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Do any of my

          4  colleagues have any questions? Do you have any more

          5  testimony? Do you want to talk anyway?

          6                 MS. JACKIER: What do you want to

          7  know?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Whatever you want

          9  to tell us.

         10                 Okay, thank you.

         11                 We're going to vote on all the items

         12  now of the day.

         13                 I recommend a yes vote.

         14                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Felder.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         17  Barron.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Aye on all.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         20  Palma.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Aye on all.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         23  Oddo.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: By a vote of
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          2  six in the affirmative, nothing in the negative, no

          3  abstentions, the aforementioned items are approved

          4  and referred to the full committee.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Closed.

          6                 (Hearing concluded at 12:07 p.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 25th day of July 2005.
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